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Duane Johnson

From: Chris Reeves <creeves@iccsafe.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 1, 2020 12:48 PM

To: Duane Johnson

Cc: Chris Reeves

Subject: RE: 2015 IBC Section 1006.2.1

Attachments: Code Change E17-15 Table 1006.2.1.pdf

Duane Johnson, 

 

This email is in response to your submitted diagram which was submitted in response to my initial email to Brian 

Stoddard on June 26, 2020.  

 

While a complete plan review was neither requested or performed, based on the submitted diagram, the dwelling unit 

arrangement appears to be in compliance with the intent of Exception #1 of Section 1006.2.1 of the 2015 IBC. As stated 

in my initial response, the intent of the code, in my opinion, was clarified by the revisions in the 2018 IBC. 

 

A copy of Code Change E17-15 which resulted in the current text in the 2018 IBC is attached for your information. 

 

If you need further assistance, let me know. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Chris Reeves 

 

Code opinions issued by ICC staff are based on ICC-published codes and do not include local, state or federal codes, 

policies or amendments. This opinion is based on the information which you have provided. We have made no 

independent effort to verify the accuracy of this information nor have we conducted a review beyond the scope of your 

question. This opinion does not imply approval of an equivalency, specific product, specific design, or specific installation 

and cannot be published in any form implying such approval by the International Code Council. As this opinion is only 

advisory, the final decision is the responsibility of the designated authority charged with the administration and 

enforcement of this code. 

 

Copyright © 2020 International Code Council, Inc.  All rights reserved. 

 

If you would like to discuss this further, I can be reached directly at (888) 422-7233, X4309. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Chris Reeves 

 

Christopher R. Reeves, P.E. 

Director, Architectural & Engineering Services 

International Code Council, Inc. 

Central Regional Office 

4051 W. Flossmoor Road 

Country Club Hills, IL 60478 

888-ICC-SAFE (422-7233), x4309  

708-799-0310 facsimile 
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creeves@iccsafe.org 

www.iccsafe.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Duane Johnson <DJohnson@knothebruce.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 12:34 PM 

To: Chris Reeves <creeves@iccsafe.org> 

Subject: FW: 2015 IBC Section 1006.2.1 

 

 

Chris, 

You and I spoke just before noon today. Attached is the plan I was referencing.  

The right side and left side are mirror images so I didn’t place the common path and unit square footages on each side, 

but I hope this gets the point across.  

 

Thanks for your help. 

 

My cell is 608-279-1401. 

Duane M. Johnson, AIA, LEED AP l Architect l Knothe & Bruce Architects, LLC l Ph: 608.836.3690-Ext.108 

7601 University Avenue, Middleton, WI 53562 l djohnson@knothebruce.com 

 

From: Brian Stoddard <BStoddard@knothebruce.com>  

Sent: Friday, June 26, 2020 11:35 AM 

To: Duane Johnson <DJohnson@knothebruce.com> 

Subject: FW: 2015 IBC Section 1006.2.1 

 

Duane – 

I haven’t read this yet.  Wanted to get it to you asap. 

 
Brian Stoddard  |  Architect  |  Knothe & Bruce Architects  |  608.836.3690 x106 

7601 University Avenue, Suite 201, Middleton, WI 53562  |  bstoddard@knothebruce.com 

 

 

 

From: Chris Reeves <creeves@iccsafe.org>  

Sent: Friday, June 26, 2020 11:33 AM 

To: Brian Stoddard <BStoddard@knothebruce.com> 

Cc: Chris Reeves <creeves@iccsafe.org> 

Subject: 2015 IBC Section 1006.2.1 

 

Brian Stoddard, 

 

This e-mail is in response to your e-mail correspondence regarding the single means of egress provisions with respect to 

a Group R-2 residential project. All comments are based on the 2015 International Building Code (IBC) unless noted 

otherwise. 
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While a drawing was not submitted, your concern is the applicability of the single means of egress “space” provisions of 

Section 1006.2.1 for a Group R-2 occupancy. This code opinion assumes that the common path of travel distance 

requirements of Table 1006.2.1 are complied with and that a dead end corridor situation does not exist (Section 1020.4). 

 

Admittedly, the IBC does not contain a definition for the term “space”. As indicated in Table 1006.2.1, typical Group R 

“spaces” are limited to a maximum of 10 occupants in order to be considered a space with one means of egress. While a 

single dwelling unit is considered a space, a configuration of multiple contiguous dwelling units as proposed, in my 

opinion, just constitute an even bigger “space”. As such, the overall aggregate occupant load of a “space” comprised of 

multiple dwelling units would still be limited to 10 before requiring a second means of egress.  

 

Exception #1 of Section 1006.2.1 allows for individual dwelling units to be considered a space with one means of egress 

provided the dwelling unit has a maximum occupant load of 20 and has a common path of travel which does not exceed 

125 feet. This exception also assumes the building is fully sprinkered in accordance with NFPA 13 or NFPA 13R. As such, 

alternatively, in my opinion, multiple units could be treated as a single dwelling unit and only require one means of 

egress from that “space” provided the aggregate occupant load of the multiple units did not exceed 20 and the common 

path of travel did not exceed 125 feet. 

 

It should be noted that just because the corridor in question is a code complying corridor and not otherwise considered 

a dead end corridor for occupants entering the corridor does not relieve the applicability of the single means of egress 

“space” provisions of Table 1006.2.1. The aggregate occupant load from adjoining rooms must be added to verify all 

converging occupants into a given space are provided the adequate number of means of egress. 

 

With respect to the 2018 IBC, Exception #1 of Section 1006.2.1 was deleted and incorporated into revised Table 

1006.2.1 for Group R-2 occupancies. Since all Group R-2 occupancies are required to be sprinklered, this exception for 

dwelling units with a maximum occupant load of 20 was always applicable. As such, the entry for Group R-2 in Table 

1006.2.1 was revised to acknowledge the maximum occupant load of 20 when only one means of egress is provided. As 

such, the 2018 IBC provides clarification to consider multiple dwelling units as a single dwelling unit for requiring a single 

means of egress from a given Group R-2 “space”. 

 

Code opinions issued by ICC staff are based on ICC published codes and do not include local, state or federal codes, 

policies or amendments. This opinion is based on the information which you have provided. We have made no 

independent effort to verify the accuracy of this information nor have we conducted a review beyond the scope of your 

question. This opinion does not imply approval of an equivalency, specific product, specific design, or specific installation 

and cannot be published in any form implying such approval by the International Code Council. As this opinion is only 

advisory, the final decision is the responsibility of the designated authority charged with the administration and 

enforcement of this code. 

 

“Copyright © 2020 International Code Council, Inc. All rights reserved.” 

 

 

If you would like to discuss this further, I can be reached directly at (888) 422-7233, X4309. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Chris Reeves 

 

Christopher R. Reeves, P.E. 

Director, Architectural & Engineering Services 

International Code Council, Inc. 

Central Regional Office 

4051 W. Flossmoor Road 

brianr
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Country Club Hills, IL 60478 

888-ICC-SAFE (422-7233), x4309  

708-799-0310 facsimile 

creeves@iccsafe.org 

www.iccsafe.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Brian Stoddard <BStoddard@knothebruce.com>  

Sent: Monday, June 22, 2020 11:16 AM 

To: John Gonzalez <jgonzalez@iccsafe.org> 

Cc: Renee Testroet <rtestroet@iccsafe.org> 

Subject: FW: IBC interpretation 

 

Good morning – 

I have a code interpretation request for the 2015 IBC: 

 

 

2015 IBC section 1006.2.1 Exception 1 allows for a maximum occupant load of 20 in a group R-2 single exit scenario. Can 

this be applied to multiple dwelling units (for example four 950 s.f. individual units) exiting to a shared code compliant 

dead end corridor if the aggregate total of all units does not exceed the 20 occupants and they each meet common path 

of travel requirements.  

 

2018 IBC moved the 20 person occupant load exception into Table 1006.2.1. Was the intent of this change a clarification 

or an actual change in allowed occupant loads. Would the same situation described above be allowed in the 2018 IBC. 

 

Thanks for your help. 

 
Brian Stoddard  |  Architect  |  Knothe & Bruce Architects  |  608.836.3690 x106 

7601 University Avenue, Suite 201, Middleton, WI 53562  |  bstoddard@knothebruce.com 

 

 

Take your next ICC certification exam PRONTO! Taking your next ICC certification exam is now more 
convenient than ever before. With ICC PRONTO, you can take many of ICC’s certification exams online 
from any secure location, such as your home or office. Learn more today. 
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